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December 21, 2017

Letter of Transmittal
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Eagle Mountain City (the City), for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017 is submitted herewith.  As a third class city, Eagle Mountain is given reasonable exceptions and 
modifications to accounting, budgetary, and reporting procedures as stated by Utah State law.  The law for first, 
second, and third class cities is to “present to the governing body an annual financial report prepared in confor-
mity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States (GAAP), as prescribed in the Uniform 
Accounting Manual for Utah Cities.”  This report, which fulfills the law for higher-class cities, presents a compre-
hensive financial picture covering all funds and financial transactions for the year.

This CAFR has been prepared by the City’s Finance and Management Departments.  Responsibility for both the 
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures 
and supplementary information, rests with the City’s management.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the 
enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial 
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the City.  All disclosures necessary to 
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the government’s financial activities have been included.  Likewise, 
the “Notes to the Financial Statements” are an integral part of this report and should be read for a more complete 
understanding of the financial statements and information presented in this report.

Management of the City is also responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed 
to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting 
data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  The City’s internal 
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.  
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits 
likely to be derived and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As required by Utah state law, an annual audit has been conducted by independent certified public accountants.  
The Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants, as prepared by Gilbert & Stewart, CPA, A Professional 
Corporation, is included within the Financial Section of this report.   The independent audit involved examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial 
statements presentation. 

The independent auditor concluded, based on the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqual-
ified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are fairly presented in 
conformity with GAAP. 
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GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  The letter of transmittal 
is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The City’s MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government
Eagle Mountain City was incorporated in December 1996 and includes over 50 square miles or around 27,000 
acres.  The City is located approximately 10 miles West of the City of Lehi, Utah, 40 miles Southwest of Salt Lake 
City, Utah, and 30 miles Northwest of Provo, Utah.  

Since the 2000 U.S. Census, Eagle Mountain City has shown steady, and often rapid, growth.  In twenty years, 
the City has grown from 2,157 residents to about 35,000 in 2017.  About 8,500 residential units have been built, 
with an average of 486 permits per year over the past 5 years, making Eagle Mountain one of the fastest growing 
communities in Utah and the state’s third largest city geographically.  

Since the City was established it has operated under the council-mayor form of government.  The City Council, 
comprised of five elected individuals, is the governing authority for the City.  The elected Mayor has various 
administrative and veto powers.  One of the Mayor’s administrative powers is the appointment of the City Ad-
ministrator, Cabinet Officers (Department Heads), and various other positions such as the City Treasurer, the City 
Recorder, and the City Engineer.  

The City Council establishes City policy, approves the budget, and ratifies the appointment of City Officials.  The 
City Council is authorized to issue bonds, incur short-term debt, levy property taxes, and is not dependent on any 
other unit of local government.

The City provides the full range of municipal services normally associated with a municipality.  In brief, the 
general government functions include police protection, park construction and maintenance, street construction 
and maintenance, public improvements, engineering, building inspection, planning and zoning, administrative 
services, and park and recreation services.  The City also operates water, solid waste, and sewer services as en-
terprise funds. 

Comprehensive annual budgets are an essential element for the City’s financial planning and control.  Therefore, 
budgets are adopted annually (required by Utah state law) by the City Council for all funds except debt service 
funds (which although budgeted, are used to account for special assessments and expendable trust funds and 
therefore are subject to compensating controls). 

Utah state law also requires: 1) a balanced budget for each individual fund; however, Redevelopment Agencies 
are allowed to incur debt prior to the triggering of the tax increment revenue thus allowing an unbalanced budget, 
2) department expenditures to conform with departmental appropriations, and 3) individual fund appropriations 
to be overspent only in “emergencies” (natural disasters).  

Once the budgets are approved, the City Council may revise the budgets from time to time after following the 
required procedures.  Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund for which 
an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Local Economy 
Utah’s unemployment rate as of October 2017 was 3.3%, much lower than the national unemployment rate of 
4.1%, with Utah County being tied for second for the lowest unemployment.  During the last half of 2017, Utah’s 
foreclosure rate stood at 0.3% which has improved significantly with the end of the recession.
  
Corresponding with Utah’s relative economic stability, Eagle Mountain grew by about 10.3% in 2017 (based on 
new building permits).  As these building permits were largely residential units, Eagle Mountain is and should 
continue seeing an increase in building since the recession ended.
  
Despite the small commercial tax base, Eagle Mountain residents enjoy a tax rate that is in the bottom third of all 
cities in Utah County.  Eagle Mountain’s current property tax rate is 0.001011.  The City has not gone through 
the Truth-in-Taxation process (to raise the rate) since FY2005.  The City has been able to manage services for 
this quick-growing community without levying heavy taxes to balance the budget.  Additional information about 
economic factors can be found in the MD&A.

Long-Term Financial Planning
Per State law requirements, the City Council approved a balanced budget for the upcoming fiscal year.  For the 
fifth year in a row, this was a challenging task, as the City’s revenue streams continue to recover from the econom-
ic downturn. City officials sought to reduce expenditures while minimizing the impact on services to residents.
  
Despite the continued impact the economy is having on the City’s revenue streams, the FY2018 Budget includes 
additional additions to the Cory B. Wride Memorial Park complex, infrastructure improvements to handle in-
creasing demands, continuing and new road paving projects throughout the city, and the purchase of a new scree 
press installed at the sewer plant.

Relevant Financial Policies
Eagle Mountain City incorporates a pay-as-you-go strategy on projects that are financially feasible.  Currently, the 
City has no general obligation debt.  However, as the City is so young, a pay-as-you-use strategy was implement-
ed in order to set up the infrastructure throughout the City.  All of the City-owned utilities were financed through 
revenue bonds.   The City consistently monitors its long-term debt situation, and refunds or repays its bonds where 
it is financially advantageous to the City. 

Major Initiatives
As we prepare for the future, the Mayor is committed to 1) Improvement of Services; 2) Park Improvements; 3) 
Improved Public Safety; 4) Improved Transportation; and 5) Emphasis on Economic Development.  These initia-
tives are reflected in the fiscal year 2018 Budget.
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Awards and Acknowledgements
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for 
the City’s annual budget document for fiscal years 2009 through 2016.  In order to qualify for the Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, 
including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.  This is the 
eighth consecutive year that the City has received this esteemed award. 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has also awarded the Certificate of Achievement in Fi-
nancial Reporting award to the City for the past seven fiscal years (2010 - 2016).  In order to qualify for the Cer-
tificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting award, the City’s financial status must meet rigorous standards for 
transparency and accuracy.

The preparation of the CAFR on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of 
the Finance and Management Department.  Each member of these departments has our sincere appreciation for 
the contributions made in the preparation of this report.  In closing, without the leadership and support of the gov-
erning body of Eagle Mountain City, preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully Submitted,

	

		
Ifo Pili,						           Paul Jerome,
City Administrator					          Finance Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and  
Members of City Council 
Eagle Mountain, Utah 
 
Report on the Basic Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eagle Mountain City, Utah (the 
City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2017, the respective changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Eagle Mountain City, we offer the readers of the financial statements this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities of Eagle Mountain City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we 
have furnished in our letter of transmittal. 

Financial Highlights

•	 In the Government Wide Statement of Net Position, the total net position of $150,657,999 is made up of 
$120,060,973 in net investment in capital assets, $5,239,686, in restricted net position, and $25,357,340 
in unrestricted net position.  Total net position increased by $18,845,631 from the prior year.

•	 As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $7,726,666.  Of this amount, $2,463,417 must only be spent on projects for which the money 
is restricted.  $2,303,926 is assigned by the City administration and is divided as follows:  $6,058 for storm 
water projects, $280,237 for debt service, and $2,017,631for capital projects.  The remaining $2,959,323 
is unassigned in the general fund.

•	 In the enterprise (proprietary) funds, operating revenues increased by $570,348. Corresponding operating 
expenses increased by $412,840. This change was due in part to the continued growth within the City.   

Reporting the City as a Whole 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Eagle Mountain City’s basic financial 
statements. Eagle Mountain City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide 
financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Eagle 
Mountain City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

•	 The statement of net position presents information on all of Eagle Mountain City’s assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Eagle Mountain City is 
improving or deteriorating. However, you will also need to consider other non-financial factors.

•	 The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
fiscal year reported. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, all of the current year’s revenues 
and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Eagle Mountain City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions 
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21 and 22 of this report.
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Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. Eagle Mountain City also uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

•	 Governmental funds – These funds are used to account for the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. These fund statements focus on how money flows 
into and out of these funds and on the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds 
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and 
other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps users determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources 
that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or 
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-26 of this report.

The major governmental funds (as determined by generally accepted accounting principles) are the 
general fund and certain debt service funds. The balance of the governmental funds are determined to be 
nonmajor and are included in the combined statements within this report.

•	 Proprietary funds – Eagle Mountain City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. Eagle Mountain City uses enterprise funds to account for its water utility, sewer utility, gas 
utility, electric utility, golf course, garbage, and business incubator.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-29 of this report.

•	 Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Fund accounts for the fleet management, utility billing, and GIS services provided to 
other departments of the government on a cost reimbursement basis.	

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In the 
case of Eagle Mountain City, assets and deferred outflows exceed liabilities and deferred inflows by $150,657,999. 

One of the largest portions of Eagle Mountain City’s net position (80%) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure assets, and machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported 
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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The following table summarizes the City’s net position.  Comparative figures for Fiscal Years 2017 and 2016 are 
shown below:

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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The following table summarizes the changes in net position:

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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Governmental activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $12,164,816.  The increase is due mainly to strong 
residential growth, which helped fuel the increase in revenues related to property taxes, sales taxes, and charges 
for services,  Also contributing to the increase in net position is the City’s commitment to conservative budgeting 
in order to keep expenditures as low as possible despite the rapid growth.  

Business-type activities 

Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $7,165,108. As of the end of the current fiscal year, 
all of the City’s business-type funds reported positive net position. 

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$7,726,666.  Of this total amount, 40% constitutes assigned and unassigned fund balances. $2,303,926 is 
assigned by the administration of the City and will be used for the following:  $6,058 for storm water projects, 
$280,237 for debt service, and $2,017,631 for capital projects. $2,959,323 is unassigned and is available for 
spending at the government’s discretion.   

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund 
balance of the general fund was $2,959,323, a decrease of $111,565 from fiscal year 2016. The total balance 
is $2,959,323, a decrease of $111,565 from the prior year.  A major reason for the change is a restatement of 
the fund balance which reduced fund balance by $184,293 and an increase in the fund balance due to revenues 
from taxes increased.  The City has implemented measures to reduce the expenditures, which contributed to 
the increase in fund balance. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unassigned fund balance represents 
31% of total general governmental fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 31% of that same 
amount.  

The City has two major Governmental Funds:

The City maintains enterprise funds to account for the business-type activities of the City. The information is 
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

1.	 Special Improvement District 2000-1.  The District was established originally to bond for certain 	
infrastructure improvements in the north service area of the City.  The repayment of the bonds is from 
annual assessments to the property owners within the district and from prepayments on the initial sale 
of a property.  The fund balance of SID 2000-1 at the end of the fiscal year is $608,687, an increase of 
$354,263.  The main reason for the increase in fund balance was additional impact fees received

2.	 General Capital Projects fund.  The fund was created to account for financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition and construction major capital facilities within the City.  At the end of fiscal year 2017 
the fund balance is $2,017,631 which is an increase of$2,017,598.  This increase is from operating 
transfers from the funds of the City in preparation for the construction of several projects.
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Unrestricted net position of the combined enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $18,406,880. The 
net investment in capital assets in these same funds is $43,226,694.   

As mentioned in the financial highlights, operational revenues and expenditures in the enterprise funds increased 
by $570,348 (42%) and $412,840 (50%), respectively. 

The water and sewer Funds showed a net operating profit,  After non-operating revenues/expenses, contributions, 
and transfers are taken into account, the water, sewer, electric, and gas fund net position increased (or decreased) 
by $6,622,373, $3,781,655, $(821,620), and $(2,191,532) respectively.  The major reasons for the increase in net 
position is an increase in impact fees collected and an increase in contributed capital from developers in the water 
and sewer funds.  The decreases in the electric and gas funds are due to transfers to the capital projects fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year, the general fund’s original budget was amended from an original budget expenditure 
total of $9,534,471 to a final budget of $10,216,658, an increase of $682,187. The increase reflects higher than 
anticipated expenditures within the general government and the public works departments.  

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. Eagle Mountain City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2017, amounts to $143,661,507 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction 
in progress. 

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the footnotes to this financial report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $22,971,000. Of 
this amount, $1,230,000 is from special assessment bonds.  The remaining $21,741,000 is secured solely by 
specific revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds and sales tax revenue bonds).

During fiscal year 2017, the City’s total outstanding debt decreased by a net amount of $858,000.

As management of Eagle Mountain City, we offer the readers of the financial statements this narrative overview 
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State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 4% of its to-
tal taxable value. The current limitations for the City are $39,192,030, which is significantly in excess of the 
City’s outstanding general obligation debt. In addition, state statutes allow for an additional 4% to be used for 
water, sewer, or other projects, thus resulting in a debt limit of 8% of total taxable value. Total limitation is 
$76,144,061, which again exceeds the outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 10 in the Notes to this financial re-
port. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

•	 Eagle Mountain City issued 782 new building permits in fiscal year 2017.  This reflects an increase 
of 212 building permits over the previous fiscal year.  The City anticipates that this trend will contin-
ue in fiscal year 2018.

•	 Eagle Mountain City administration is very conservative in estimating budgeted revenues.  In the 
general fund, budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2018 are 1% lower than the revenues collected for 
fiscal year 2017.  This enables the city to respond to any potential market disruptions that could neg-
atively impact revenue streams that the city depends on for services.

•	 No rate increases were budgeted for in fiscal year 2018, however, the city is actively engaged in 
analyzing, both internally and externally, revenues from rates and expenditures related to the services 
provided through those rates to determine future needs.

•	 With Eagle Mountain City’s high desert location, the city entered into an agreement with the Central 
Utah Water Conservancy District to purchase 15,000 acre feet of water from fiscal year 2012 through 
fiscal year 2021.  As of fiscal year 2017, the city has purchased 1,020 acre feet of water and the 
pump station and water line to transport the water to the city is fully functioning.  The contract has 
been renegotiated with CUWCD to purchase additional water when new users come on to the system 
and have need for this specific water source.

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Eagle Mountain City’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: Eagle Mountain City, Finance 
Director, 1650 East Stagecoach Run, Eagle Mountain, UT 84005.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

Unearned
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Balance Sheet Reconciliation to

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Eagle Mountain (the City) financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) accepted in the United States of America as applicable to Governmental units.  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for accounting 
and financial reporting principles. 

	 A.	 Reporting Entity

Eagle Mountain City was incorporated December 1996, under laws of the State of Utah.  Under the present 
form of government, administrative and legislative powers are vested in a governing body consisting of 
the Mayor and a five-member City Council.  They are assisted by a City Administrator, who also is the 
City’s budget officer.  The treasurer is currently responsible for the financial matters of the City, including 
money management, accounts payable, financial statements, utility billing, and accounts receivable.  The 
City provides the following services as mandated by law:  Public Safety, Highways and Streets, Sanitation, 
Parks, Water, Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services. 

The General Purpose Financial Statements of the City include the financial statements for all activities of 
the City based upon the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
14.  The primary criterion for including a board or agency in this report is financial accountability, which 
determines whether an entity is a component unit of the financial reporting entity.  Blended component 
units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the government’s operations, and therefore, 
data from these units are combined with data of the primary government.  Discretely presented component 
units are reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally 
separate from the City. 

•	 The Redevelopment Agency of Eagle Mountain City is considered a blended component unit and is 
included in the governmental funds of the City. It was established to prepare and carry out plans to 
improve, rehabilitate and redevelop blighted areas within the City.  The RDA is governed by a board 
of trustees composed of the Mayor and members of the City Council.  Although it is a legally separate 
entity for the City, the RDA is reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the 
City’s ability to impose its will upon the operations of the RDA.  The RDA is included in these financial 
statements as the Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue fund.  Separate financial statements are not 
issued for the RDA.

B.	 Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes 
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges 
for support. 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with 
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function 
or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 

C.  	 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized in the year 
for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., 
when they are “measurable and available”).  “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined, and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be 
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues available if they are 
collected within 60 days after the year-end.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt. Expenditures related to compensated 
absences, claims, and judgments are also recorded, but only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state and federal grants 
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, and so have 
been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial resources, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The general capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by the proprietary funds.)

The Special Improvement Districts Debt Service Fund, 2001-1 is used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for repayment of debt obligations.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water operations.

The sewer fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer operations.

The electric fund accounts for the activities of the City’s electric operations.

The gas fund accounts for the activities of the City’s gas operations.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The internal service fund accounts for the fleet management services provided to other departments of 
the government on a cost reimbursement basis.

As a general rule, the effect of inter fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are payments to the general fund by the various enterprise funds 
for providing administrative services for such funds.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.   Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D.	 Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

The City’s temporary cash investments consist of amounts deposited with Utah Public Treasurer’s 
Investment Fund and money market funds.  Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.     

E.	 Interfund Transactions
	
During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions between funds to distribute administrative 
costs and distribute grant proceeds.  These transactions are generally reflected as operating transfers, 
which are transfers from a fund authorized to receive certain revenues to the fund through which the 
resources are to be expended.  The General Fund billed the respective enterprise funds for administrative 
costs associated with billing and collection of utility charges.  These changes are reflected as revenues and 
expenses in the respective funds. 

F.	 Restricted Assets

The City maintains cash balances as required by bond covenants.  These amounts are reflected in the 
financial statements as restricted cash. It is the City’s policy to use restricted assets first and then unrestricted 
assets. 

G.	 Capital Assets
	
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government as 
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life 
in excess of two years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets’ lives are not capitalized. 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 

				                Assets		  Years
	 	 	 	 Buildings and structures	 	 30-50
	 	 	 	 Improvements other than buildings	 20-50
	 	 	 	 Infrastructure	 	 30-50
	 	 	 	 Machinery and equipment	 	   5-10
	 	 	 	 Furniture and fixtures	 	   5-10

H.	 Compensated Absences

City employees accrue earned vacation, sick leave, long-term sick leave, and comp time throughout the year. 
They are allowed to carry forward all accrued comp, long term sick leave, and up to 240 hours of vacation 
time into the next calendar year, but are encouraged to take their vacation leave within the calendar year in 
which it is earned.  Upon termination of employment, an employee will be compensated for up to 240 hours 
of unused vacation leave, comp time, and long-term sick leave, but will forfeit any accumulated sick leave. 

Vacation pay is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a fund liability. Vacation pay that 
is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and 
a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it.   

I.	 Taxes

In Utah, county governments assess, levy, collect, and disburse two principal types of tax: (1) personal 
property tax, which is assessed on business assets other than real estate, and (2) tax on real estate and 
improvements.  Business personal property and real estate taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property 
as of January 1.  Taxes are levied on all business personal property on January 1, and real estate and 
improvement taxes are levied on January 1 and are payable by November 30.  The real property taxes, 
which are due in November, are reported as a receivable from property taxes on the financial statements.  
Because these taxes are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, they are offset 
by deferred revenue. 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The City Council is authorized by state statute to levy a tax against all real and personal property located 
within its boundaries.  The Council must set a tax rate by June 22 each year.
  
The County Treasurer, acting as a tax collector, must settle and disburse all tax collections to all taxing 
entities on a routine basis. 

J.	 Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.  Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.  Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred 
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources.   Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the accrual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.  Interest expense is not 
included in the functions of governmental activities. 

K. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions from URS’s fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

L.  Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources  

Beginning with 2013, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and Statement No. 65, Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These Statements provide financial reporting guidance to 
standardize the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their 
effects on a government’s net position. They also establish accounting standards 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

and financial reporting standards that reclassify certain items as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources that were previously reported as assets and liabilities, and recognizes certain items as 
outflows of resources or inflows of resources that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.  

In addition to assets, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption 
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. The City has two items, bond refunding costs and pension related costs, that are reported 
on the statement of net position as a deferred outflow.

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) 
until that time. The City has two items, one of which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting 
that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported in the 
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes 
and pension related costs. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period 
that the amounts become available. The item, revenue for future year, is reported in both the statement of 
net position and the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts account for property taxes levied on 
January 1, 2016, for the 2017 fiscal year..

M.	 Fund Equity

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on a hierarchy that shows, from 
highest to lowest, the level or form of constraints on fund balance resources and the extent to which the City 
is bound to honor them. The City first determines and reports non-spendable balances, then restricted, then 
committed, and so forth. The City’s governmental funds beginning balances have been restated to reflect the 
below classifications. Fund balance classifications are summarized as follows: 

•	 Non spendable. This category includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either a) not in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Fund 
balance amounts related to inventories, prepaid expenditures, and endowments are classified as non 
spendable.

•	 Restricted. This category includes net fund resources that are subject to external constraints that 
have been placed on the use of the resources either a) imposed by creditors (such as through a debt 
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restricted fund balance amounts include the following:
a)	 Unspent B&C road funds.
b)	 Unspent Impact fees.
c)	 Special Assessments.

•	 Committed. This category includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
established by formal action of the City Council. Fund balance commitments 
can only be removed or changed by the same type of resolution of the City Council. This classification 
also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically 
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The City Council has not committed 
any fund balance amounts.

•	 Assigned. This category includes Governmental Fund balance amounts that the City intends to be 
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent is expressed by formal 
action of the City’s administration comprised of the City administrative council. This category also 
includes the remaining positive fund balance for other governmental funds. The City has assigned debt 
service requirement, storm drain charges and capital projects.

•	 Unassigned. Residual balances in the Governmental Funds are classified as unassigned.

It is the City’s policy to use restricted, committed, assigned, and then unassigned fund balance.

N.	 Use of Estimates

Presenting financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires 
management to make certain estimates concerning assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses.  Actual results 
may vary from these estimates.

NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
                  STATEMENTS	

A.	 Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance – total governmental 
funds and net assets – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
                  STATEMENTS (Continued)

This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net assets versus the 
current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets.

	 1.  	Capital related items:
When capital assets (property, plant, and equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities 
are purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets is reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds.  However, the statement of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the 
city as a whole.

  
	 	 	 Cost of capital assets	 $110,636,178	 	 	 	
	 	 	 Accumulated depreciation	  (32,451,058)				  
 				    Net adjustment to increase fund balance  
			   total governmental funds to arrive at net-	
			   assets - governmental activities)	 $78,185,120

2.	 Long-term assets:
Long-term assets applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not available to pay for 
expenditures of the current period and are, therefore, deferred in the governmental balance sheet.

	 Special assessment revenue	 $1,610,396
	 Delinquent property taxes	      6,653
		  Net adjustment to increase fund balance –
		  total governmental funds to arrive at net
		  assets - governmental activities	 $1,617,049

3.	 Long-term debt transactions:
Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in 
the current period and, accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the fund statements. All 
liabilities (both current and long-term) are reported in the statement of net assets.
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
                  STATEMENTS	 (Continued)

	
	 	 	 	 Bonds payable	 ($1,230,000)	
	 	 	 	 Capital lease payable	 (     113,057)
	 	 	 	 Bond interest payable	 (       10,059)
	 	 	 	 Bond premium	 (        7,784)
	 	 	 	 Net Pension Liability	 (  1,336,750)	

		  Compensated absences	 (     196,492)

			   Net adjustment to reduce fund balance –
			   total governmental funds to arrive at
			   net postition – governmental activities	           ($2,894,142)

B.	 Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental funds and changes in net assets 
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.  One element of that 
reconciliation explains that “governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense.” 

	 	 Capital outlay	 $  5,088,694
		  Depreciation expense	  (     3,246,350)
			   Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
				    balances – total governmental funds to arrive at
				     changes in net assets of governmental activities	 ($    1,842,344)

Another element of that reconciliation states, “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides 
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 
effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
statement of activities.” 
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
                  STATEMENTS	 (Continued)

	
		
	 Principal payments:
	 	 Amortization of bond premiums	 $          487	
	 	 Principal paid on bonds and capital leases	 290,916
			   Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
				    balances – total governmental funds to arrive 
				    at changes in net position of governmental activities	 $   291,403

	 Another element of that reconciliation states that certain expenses reported in the statement of activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and are, therefore, not reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds.

	 	 Accrued bond interest	 $   2,021
	 	 Pension related costs	 (63,400)	
		  Compensated absences	       (20,051)
			   Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
				    balances – total governmental funds to arrive 
				    at changes in net assets of governmental activities	 $    (81,430)

NOTE 3 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are prepared and adopted in accordance with the Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act adopted by 
the State of Utah.  Once a budget has been adopted, it remains in effect until it has been formally revised.  
Furthermore, in accordance with state law, all appropriations lapse at the end of the budget year.  If any obligations 
are contracted for and are in excess of adopted budget, they are not a valid or enforceable claim against the City.  
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.  All funds of the City 
have legally adopted budgets. 

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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NOTE 3 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (Continued)

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

A.	 On or before the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the City Administrator, 
authorized under state statute to be appointed budget officer, submits a proposed operating budget.  The 
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

B.	 A public hearing is held, at which time the taxpayers’ comments are heard.  Notice of the hearing is given 
in the local newspaper at least seven days prior to the hearing.  Copies of the proposed budget are made 
available for public inspection ten days prior to the public hearing.

C.	 On or before June 22, a final balanced budget must be adopted through passage of a resolution for the 
subsequent fiscal year beginning July 1.

D.	 Control of budgeted expenditures is exercised, under state law, at the departmental level.  The City 
Administrator, however, acting as budget officer, has the authority to transfer budget appropriations between 
line items within any department of any budgetary fund.  The City Council, by resolution, has the authority 
to transfer budget appropriations between the individual departments of any budgetary fund.

E.	 Budget appropriations for any department may be reduced by resolution.

F.	 A public hearing, as required in (B) above, must be held to increase the total appropriations of any one 
governmental fund type; however, after the original public hearing, operating and capital budgets of 
proprietary fund types may be increased by resolution without an additional hearing.

G.	 Encumbrances lapse at year end.  Encumbered amounts carry over to the following year and are subject to 
reappropriation. Therefore, no encumbrances are presented in the financial statements.

During the budget year, the City modified the budget using the above procedures.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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NOTE 4 – CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds.  At June 30, 2017 the City’s 
cash balance consisted of the following:

While the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $36,891,892 the balance in the City’s bank account                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
and cash on hand was $32,570,021, with the difference being due to outstanding checks and deposits in transit.

A.	 Deposits

Deposits – Custodial Credit Risk.  Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s 
deposits may not be returned to it.  The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management 
Act in handling its depository and investing transactions.  The City considers the actions of the State 
Money Management Council to be necessary and sufficient for adequate protection of its uninsured bank 
deposits.  City funds are deposited in qualified depositories as defined by the Act.  The City does not 
have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.  As of June 30, 2017, the City’s custodial credit risk, for 
deposits were as follows:
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 4 – CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

B.	 Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments 
for the District and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions 
may be conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of 
the investment securities. 

Statutes authorize the District to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified 
depositories and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase 
agreements; commercial paper classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical 
rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investor Services or Standard and Poor’s; 
bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the U.S. Treasury, including bills, notes, and bonds; bonds, 
notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate 
corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” 
or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares or certificates 
in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurer’s 
Investment Fund. All investments held by the City at June 30, 2017, comply with the provisions 
of the Act. 

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF). The 
PTIF is available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer. The PTIF 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated 
by the Money Management Act, Section 51-7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. The Act 
established the Money Management Council, which oversees the activities of the State Treasurer 
and the PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. The PTIF is considered a cash 
equivalent for the purposes of the financial statements.   

Deposits in the PT1F are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and 
participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments.  

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and 
losses (net of administration fees of the PTIF) are allocated based upon the participant’s average 
daily balance. The fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of 
the pool shares.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 4 – CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Fair Value of Investments

The District measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines established by gen-
erally accepted accounting principles.  These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows: 

•	 Level 1:  Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets
•	 Level 2:  Observable inputs other than quoted market prices
•	 Level 3:  Unobservable inputs

At June 30, 2017, the District had the following recurring fair value measurements.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 4 – CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The City’s investments are managed through participation in the State Public Treasurers’ Investment 
Fund and through a trust arrangement with a local bank, and a liquid asset management account.  As of 
June 30, 2017, the City had the following investments:  

                 

Investments – Interest Rate Risk.  The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, 
interest rate risk is managed by compliance with the Utah Money Management Act, which provides guidance for 
handling depository and investing transactions in order to minimize interest rate risk. 

Investments – Credit Risk. The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act in handling 
its depository and investing transactions.   The City funds are deposited in qualified depositories as defined 
by the Act.  The Act also authorizes the City to invest in the Utah Public Treasurers Investment Fund (PTIF), 
certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. agency issues, restricted mutual funds, and obligations of 
governmental entities within the State of Utah.  The City’s investments are invested in accordance with the Act.  
The State Money Management Council provides regulatory oversight for the investments.  The degree of risk of 
the investments depends on the underlying portfolio.  The Act and Council rules govern the financial reporting 
requirements of qualified depositories in which public funds may be deposited and prescribe the conditions under 
which the designation of a depository shall remain in effect.  If a qualified depository should become ineligible to   
hold public funds, public treasurers are notified immediately.  The City considers the actions of the Council to be 
necessary and sufficient for adequate protection of its investments.  The City has no investment policy that would 
further limit its investment choices. 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 4 – CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on a amortized cost basis. The income gains, and losses (net of 
administration fees) of the PTIF are allocated based on the participant’s average daily balance.  The fair value 
of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of the pool shares with a difference of $86,887, 
which is immaterial. 

Investments Custodial Credit Risk.  For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment arrangements primarily invest in 
the Utah Public Treasurers Investment fund and agencies or in instrumentalities of the United States that meet 
the allowable investments of the Utah Money Management Act.  The City does not have an investment policy 
for custodial credit risk
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major and nonmajor funds, including the applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

NOTE 6 – NOTE RECEIVABLE

During the fiscal year 2012 the City sold the golf course to an outside party for $550,000. The purchase was 
financed with a note receivable to the City of $550,000.  The note has no interest rate.  The outside party will 
pay the City 10% of its net income annually until the debt is repaid.  The Note is treated as long term on the 
financial statements. During fiscal year 2017 the City negotiated with the Golf course to amend the original 
contract to include unpaid utility fees owed to the City in the amount of $152,908. As of June 30, 2017 the 
outstanding note balance was $702,908.   

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 7 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND TRANSFERS

	 The operating transfers of the City consist of the following:

The City transferred monies to support capital project payments in the capital projects fund.  The City also 
transferred monies to support operations in the economic development fund.   

Governmental funds report deferred inflows in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered 
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition 
in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
various components of deferred inflows reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 9 – LEASE COMMITMENTS

During 2014, the City executed a new lease in the internal service fund in the amount of $544,278, payable in 
annual installments for 4 years. 

Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Amortization of capital assets purchased under capital leases are included in depreciation. 

The future payments required by the lease are as follows:

As of June 30, 2017 the lease payable consisted of the following:
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 10 – LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2017, are comprised of the following: 

1.	 $2,400,000 Eagle Mountain City Special Assessment Bond 2014 (SAA-2014)
This bond requires semiannual payments of interest and annual payments of principal due November 
1, 2014 through May 1, 2033, bearing a variable interest rate ranging from 2-5%  the debt service 
requirements to maturity are as follows: 

2.	 $16,500,000  Eagle Mountain Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds Series 2007
This bond was used to refund the original Water and Sewer Bond.  This bond requires annual installments 
of principal and interest due beginning November 2008 through November 2026, bearing an interest 
ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. During 2015 the bond was partially defeased through an advanced 
refunding, $9,705,000 of the principal was defeased and the remaining $4,855,000 will require annual 
installments of principal and interest due beginning November 2015 through November 2026.  The debt 
service requirements to maturity are as follows:
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NOTE 10 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

3.	 $6,665,000 Eagle Mountain City Sewer Water Quality Board Bond Series 2008.  
This bond was issued for the construction of a waste water treatment plant expansion.  This bond requires 
annual payments of interest and principal beginning December 2009 through December 2028, bearing an 
interest rate of 1%.  The bond is a reimbursement bond.  The total amount of the bond is $6,665,000.  The 
debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

	

4.	 $11,085,000 Eagle Mountain City Gas & Electric Revenue Bond Series 2012.
This bond was issued for the construction of a utilities building and redundancy lines within the 
City.  During 2015 the bond was defeased through an advanced refunding. The City used a portion of 
the proceeds from the sale of the Utility System to advance refund $9,195,000 of outstanding 2012 
series Gas and Electric revenue-bonds.  As of June 30, 2017, $7,735,000 of the original debt is still 
outstanding.

5.	 $2,536,000 Eagle Mountain City Water Quality Revenue Bond Series 2013
This bond was issued for water system improvements within the City.  The bond requires annual 
principal beginning May 2015, and interest payments beginning May 2014 through May 2034, bearing 
an interest rate of 1.72%. The debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
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NOTE 10 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

6.	 $4,560,000 Note Payable Water Well.
The note was issued with a settlement of a lawsuit regarding the purchase of a well within the City.  The 
note carries no interest rate.  The note requires annual principal payments with a set amortization for 
2014 and 2015. The note will then be repaid with impact fees as they are collected by the City.

7.	 $9,685,000 2014 Water and Sewer Refunding Bond.
This bond was used to refund a portion of the original Water and Sewer Bonds.  This bond requires annual 
installments of principal beginning November 2021 and interest due beginning November 2015 through 
November 2032, bearing an interest ranging from 4.00%.  The debt service requirements to maturity are 
as follows:
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 10 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

	 8. Changes in long term liabilities.
Changes in bonds payable, deferred items, capital leases, and compensated absences during the fiscal 
year June 30, 2017 were as follows:  

NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS

Description of plans – Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement 
Systems. The Utah Retirements Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:

•	 Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a multiple 
employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.

•	 Tier 2 Public Employees contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System); is a 
multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

•	 The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1 2011. All eligible employees beginning on 
or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, are 
members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.

The Utah Retirement System (URS) is established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49 of the 
Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The URS’s defined benefit plans are amended statutorily by the State 
Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration of the Systems 
under the direction of the Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. They URS are fiduciary funds 
defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of Utah. 
Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. URS issues a publicly 
available financial report which can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement Systems, 560 E. 200 S, Salt Lake 
City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org

Benefits Provided – URS Provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as follows:

System
Final average 

salary
Years of service required and/or 

age eligible for benefit
Benefit percent per year of 

service COLA**
Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 years any age 2.0% per year all years Up to 4%

25 years any age*
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

Firefighters System Highest 3 years 20 years any age 2.5% per year to to 20 years; Up to 4%
10 years age 60 2.0% per year over 20 years
4 years age 65

Tier 2 Public Employees System Highest 5 years 35 years any age 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5%
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System Highest 5 years 25 years any age* 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5%
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

*with actuarial reductions
**all post-retirement cost of living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for Judges, which is a 
compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused
CPI increases not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Contributions – As a condition of participation in the plans, employers and/or employees are required to 
contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the URS Board.  
Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions 
(where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates are as follows:

Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the 
Tier 1 plans.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the employer and employee contributions to the System were as 
follows:

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by the System.  Contributions in the 
Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities of the Tier 1 Systems.

Pension assets, liabilities, expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions – At June 30, 2017 the City reported a net pension assets of $0 and a net pension liability of 
$1,617,287.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the net pension asset and liability were determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016 
and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures.  The proportion of the net pension asset and 
liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the System during the plan year over the 
total of all employer contributions to the System during the plan year.   

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $525,535. At December 31, 2016, the 
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension plans from the 
following sources: 

The $252,927 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
made prior to the fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2016. These 
contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 



60

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Actuarial assumptions – The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016, actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Active member mortality rates are a function of the member’s gender, occupation, and age and are developed 
based upon plan experience. Retiree mortality assumptions are highlighted in the table below.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the five year period of January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2013. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined 
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The 7.20% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.60% and a real return of 
4.60% that is net of investment expense. 

Discount rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%.  The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually 
required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board.  Based on those assumptions, the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The 
discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate.  The discount rate was reduced to 7.20 percent from 
7.50 percent from the prior measurement period.   

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the 
discount rate – The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.20%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower  
(6.20%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20%) than the current rate: 
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NOTE 11 – STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Pension plan fiduciary net position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued URS financial report. 

Defined Contribution Savings Plans
The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems  Board and are 
generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, but they may also 
be used as a primary retirement plan.  These plans are voluntary tax advantaged retirement savings programs 
authorized under sections 401(k) and 408 of the Internal Revenue Code.  Detailed information regarding plan 
provisions is available in the separately issued URS financial report.  

Eagle Mountain City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings plans with the Utah Retirement 
Systems: 
•	 401(k) Plan
•	 457(b) Plan
•	 Roth IRA plan

Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, were as follows:

NOTE 12 – RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES

The City has restricted fund balances for unspent roads funds, special assessments, and impact fees.

NOTE 13 - LITIGATION

The City is a defendant in certain legal actions and pending actions or is in process for miscellaneous 
claims.  The ultimate liability that might result from the final resolution of the above matters is not presently 
determinable.  City management is of the opinion that the final outcome of the cases will not have an adverse 
material affect on the City’s financial statements. 
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NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The City participates in the Utah Local Governments 
Trust (a public entity risk pool).  All claims are submitted to the Utah Local Governments Trust, which acts as a 
commercial insurer.  The Association is obligated to pay all claims covered by its plan.  All claims are subject to 
a $5,000 deductible.  The deductible is accrued as a current liability when the claim is incurred.  The Utah Local 
Governments Trust covers claims up to $10,000,000.  The City has not incurred a claim in excess of its coverage 
for any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 15 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City has entered into agreements with various developers to donate infrastructure that will benefit future 
development within the city.  These developers will be repaid with the impact fees collected from those future 
developments.  Because of the fluctuations in the building market within the City and due to the uncertainty of 
new developments actually being built, the amounts are not reflected as liabilities on the financial statements.  
They will be recorded as expenses as the future impact fees are received.  The amount of outstanding impact fee 
reimbursement agreements as of the balance sheet date is $4,982,921. 

NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or 
disclosure through December 10, 2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 17 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

The City received funds paid by developers as deposits for landscaping projects throughout the City.  When the 
projects are completed the funds are returned to the developer. During the 2017 fiscal year it was discovered the 
$184,293 of these funds were incorrectly recorded as revenue on the financial statements in prior years.  As a result 
the beginning fund balance of the general fund and the governmental activities net position has been restated. 
In May of 2014 the City issued Series 2013 water quality revenue bonds.  The bond proceeds were received as 
reimbursements were submitted.  $300,000 of the bond proceeds were incorrectly recorded as revenue on the 
financial statements in subsequent years.  As a result the beginning net position of the business type activities have 
been restated.   

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Detail

Budget to Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 – Changes in assumptions 

The following actuarial assumptions changes were adopted January 1, 2016.  The assumed investment return 
assumption was decreased from 7.50% to 7.20% and the assumed inflation rate was decreased from 2.75% 
to 2.60%.  With the decrease in the assumed rate of inflation, both the payroll growth and wage inflation 
assumptions were decreased by 0.15% from the prior year’s assumption. 
  
NOTE 2 – Budgetary Information 

Budgets for the general fund are adopted and presented on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, PROPRIETARY, AND 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 2000-1
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Special Assessment Area - 2014
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
General Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Variance with
Final	Budget	-

Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)

REVENUES
Miscellaneous -$ -$ -$ -$

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal - - - -
Interest and fees - - - -

Total expenditures - - - -

Excess (deficit) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures - - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balance - - - -

Fund	balances	-	beginning 339 339 339 -
Fund	balances	-	ending 339$ 339$ 339$ -$

Budgeted Amounts
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 98-1
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 98-3
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 97-1
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017



80

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Storm Water Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Parks Impact Fee

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Public Safety Impact Fee

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Transportation Impact Fee

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Cemetery Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Redevelopment Agency

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Net Position

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value)

Overlapping	Rates

Fiscal 
Year

Basic 
Rates

Total 
Direct 
Rates

Utah	
County

	Central	Utah	
Water 

Conservancy 
District

Alpine 
School 
District

Salt Lake 
Valley 

Fire 
District

State 
Assessing 

&
Collecting

Local 
Assessing 

&
Collecting

Total Tax 
Rate

2008 1.163 1.163 0.843 0.302 6.937 0.121 0.036 9.402
2009 1.230 1.230 0.809 0.286 7.057 0.121 0.175 9.678
2010 1.400 1.400 0.878 0.400 7.541 0.142 0.183 10.544
2011 1.510 1.510 1.108 0.421 8.220 0.162 0.024 11.445
2012 1.636 1.636 1.143 0.436 8.812 0.172 0.027 12.226
2013 1.668 1.668 1.127 0.455 8.828 0.168 0.029 12.275
2014 1.380 1.380 1.006 0.446 8.699 2.192 0.158 0.095 13.976
2015 1.192 1.192 0.916 0.422 8.096 2.097 0.013 0.220 12.956
2016 1.118 1.118 0.870 0.405 8.177 1.997 0.012 0.216 12.795
2017 1.081 1.081 0.834 0.400 7.718 1.884 0.011 0.204 12.132

Source:	Utah	County	Treasurer

City	Direct	Rates

CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN
Direct	and	Overlapping	Property	Tax	Rates

Last	Ten	Fiscal	Years
(rate	per	$1,000	of	assessed	value)
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Property Tax Levied and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal 
Year	

Ended 
June	30,

Tax Levied 
for the Fiscal 

Year

Current 
Amount 

Collected
Percentage 

of Levy

Subsequent 
Delinquent 

Amount 
Collected 

Total 
Collected to 

Date
Percentage 

of Levy

2008 807,757$ 685,943$ 84.9% 121,814$ 807,757$ 100.00%
2009 1,005,266 824,566 82.0% 180,700 1,005,266 100.00%
2010 1,022,944 865,717 84.6% 157,227 1,022,944 100.00%
2011 1,033,170 912,961 88.4% 119,773 1,032,734 99.96%
2012 1,082,688 990,018 91.4% 92,363 1,082,381 99.97%
2013 1,102,986 1,027,078 93.1% 75,594 1,102,672 99.97%
2014 972,744 910,201 93.6% 61,263 971,464 99.87%
2015 987,417 931,878 94.4% 53,731 985,610 99.82%
2016 1,074,593 1,014,350 94.4% 52,093 1,066,444 99.24%
2017 1,191,899 1,136,921 95.4% 41,987 1,178,908 98.91%

Source:	Utah	County	Treasurer

CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN
Property Tax Levied and Collections

Last	Ten	Fiscal	Years
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal 
Year

Eagle 
Mountain City 
Direct	Rate Utah	County

Mass Transit, 
Highway and 

Airport
State of 
Utah

2008 1.00% 0.25% 0.30% 4.65%
2009 1.00% 0.25% 0.55% 4.70%
2010 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2011 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2012 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2013 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2014 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2015 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2016 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2017 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%

Source:		Utah	State	Tax	Commission

Direct	and	Overlapping	Sales	Tax	Rates
CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN

Last	Ten	Fiscal	Years
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2017

Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding

Estimated 
Percentage 
Applicable

Estimated Share of 
Direct and 

Overlapping Debt

Debt repaid with property taxes
Utah County -$                               4.20% -$                            
Alpine School District 441,725,000               7.80% 34,454,550             
Central Utah Water Cons. Dist. 661,689,000               0.93% 6,153,708               

Subtotal, overlapping debt 40,608,258             

City direct debt 1,343,000               

Total direct and overlapping debt 41,951,258$           

Please Note:  Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt includes bonds and other 
debt from entities which appear on Eagle Mountain residents' property tax statements.  These 
debts are not Eagle Mountain City obligations directly but instead are obligations other taxing 
entites have to which residents of Eagle Mountain are required to pay through property tax 
assessments to those entities.  The overlap percentage is calculated based on population and 
value assessment statistics gathered by Utah County.

CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2017



110

E
A

G
L

E
 M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 C

IT
Y

Le
ga

l D
eb

t M
ar

gi
n 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

La
st
 T
en
 F
is
ca
l Y
ea
rs

(d
ol

la
rs

 in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

L
eg

al
 D

eb
t 

M
ar

gi
n 

C
al

cu
la

ti
on

 f
or

 F
Y

 2
01

7

A
ss

es
se

d 
va

lu
e

$1
,1

10
,3

87
D

eb
t l

im
it 

(1
2%

 o
f 

th
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 v
al

ue
)

13
3,

24
6

D
eb

t a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 li
m

it
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

en
er

al
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
bo

nd
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 d

eb
t d

eb
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 li

m
it

L
eg

al
 d

eb
t m

ar
gi

n
13

3,
24

6

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

D
eb

t l
im

it
98

,0
75

$ 
   

   
 

90
,2

54
$ 

   
   

 
83

,3
59

$ 
   

   
 

75
,7

20
$ 

   
   

 
74

,8
95

$ 
   

   
 

79
,7

94
$ 

   
 

83
,8

04
$ 

   
 

96
,9

38
$ 

   
   

 
10

9,
97

2
$ 

   
  

13
3,

24
6

$ 
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 n

et
 d

eb
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 li

m
it

L
eg

al
 d

eb
t m

ar
gi

n
98

,0
75

90
,2

54
83

,3
59

75
,7

20
74

,8
95

79
,7

94
83

,8
04

96
,9

38
10

9,
97

2
13

3,
24

6

T
ot

al
 n

et
 d

eb
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 

th
e 

lim
it 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

de
bt

 li
m

it
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%

So
ur

ce
:

U
ta

h 
St

at
e 

T
ax

 C
om

m
is

si
on

N
ot

es
:

U
nd

er
 s

ta
te

 f
in

an
ce

 la
w

, t
he

 c
ity

's 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ge

ne
ra

l o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

de
bt

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
12

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l a

ss
es

se
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 v
al

ue
. 

O
f 

th
is

 p
er

ce
nt

, a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 
4%

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 g
en

er
al

 p
ur

po
se

.  
T

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 8
%

 a
nd

 a
ny

 u
nu

se
d 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
4%

 a
va

ila
bl

e
fo

r 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ur

po
se

 u
p 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 

12
%

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 w
at

er
, s

ew
er

, a
nd

 e
le

ct
ri

ca
l p

ro
je

ct
s.

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 E

A
G

L
E

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
L

eg
al

 D
eb

t M
ar

gi
n 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

(d
ol

la
rs

 in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

L
es

s:
 A

m
ou

nt
 s

et
 a

si
de

 f
or

 r
ep

ay
m

en
t o

f 
ge

ne
ra

l o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

de
bt



111

E
A

G
L

E
 M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 C

IT
Y

Pl
ed
ge
d-
R
ev
en
ue
 C
ov
er
ag
e

La
st
 T
en
 F
is
ca
l Y
ea
rs

(d
ol

la
rs

 in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

De
bt 

Se
rvi

ce
De

bt 
Se

rvi
ce

De
bt 

Se
rvi

ce

Fis
ca

l 
Ye

ar

Ut
ilit

y 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ch

arg
e

Le
ss:

 
Op

era
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es

Ne
t 

Av
ail

ab
le 

Re
ve

nu
e

Pr
inc

ipa
l

Int
ere

st
Co

ve
rag

e

Ut
ilit

y 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ch

arg
e

Le
ss:

 
Op

era
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es

Ne
t 

Av
ail

ab
le 

Re
ve

nu
e

Pr
inc

ipa
l

Int
ere

st
Co

ve
rag

e
Sp

ec
ial

 
As

ses
sm

en
t

Pr
inc

ipa
l

Int
ere

st
Co

ve
rag

e

20
08

3,5
17

$  
  

2,7
19

$  
    

79
8

$  
    

   
23

5
$  

    
  

44
1

$  
    

    
    

1.1
8

11
,39

7
$  

   
9,9

80
$  

    
 

1,4
17

$  
    

46
0

$  
    

97
1

$  
    

 
0.9

9
    

    
 

2,1
32

$  
    

   
1,6

28
$  

    
  

50
4

$  
    

    
    

1.0
0

    
    

20
09

3,6
94

2,6
14

1,0
80

38
5

79
0

0.9
2

10
,06

5
10

,12
3

(58
)

51
5

    
    

94
4

    
    

 
(0.

04
)

    
   

52
1

    
    

    
  

15
1

    
    

    
 

37
0

    
    

    
    

1.0
0

    
    

20
10

4,3
87

3,6
92

69
5

34
0

78
9

0.6
2

11
,29

2
9,9

58
1,3

34
58

0
    

    
92

9
    

    
 

0.8
8

    
    

 
49

1
    

    
    

  
11

1
    

    
    

 
38

0
    

    
    

    
1.0

0
    

    
20

11
4,6

96
4,4

32
26

4
35

8
82

9
0.2

2
11

,55
1

10
,24

6
1,3

05
64

5
    

    
91

8
    

    
 

0.8
3

    
    

 
65

1
    

    
    

  
69

5
    

    
    

 
38

7
    

    
    

    
0.6

0
    

    
20

12
4,9

01
    

  
4,8

25
    

    
76

    
    

    
 

39
5

    
    

  
83

0
    

    
    

    
0.0

6
12

,08
9

    
   

11
,06

1
    

   
1,0

28
1,4

35
    

 
1,2

31
    

  
0.3

9
    

    
 

34
6

    
    

    
  

44
1

    
    

    
 

29
4

    
    

    
    

0.4
7

    
    

20
13

5,1
28

    
  

4,8
33

    
    

29
5

    
    

   
44

2
    

    
  

80
2

    
    

    
    

0.2
4

    
    

 
13

,26
6

    
   

12
,00

2
    

   
1,2

64
    

    
1,3

95
    

 
1,2

71
    

  
0.4

7
    

    
 

39
4

    
    

    
  

16
2

    
    

    
 

25
7

    
    

    
    

0.9
4

    
    

20
14

5,7
29

    
  

4,9
32

    
    

79
7

    
    

   
45

0
    

    
  

78
8

    
    

    
    

0.6
4

    
    

 
14

,69
2

    
   

13
,32

1
    

   
1,3

71
    

    
1,4

35
    

 
1,2

27
    

  
0.5

2
    

    
 

65
6

    
    

    
  

10
9

    
    

    
 

24
1

    
    

    
    

1.8
7

    
    

20
15

6,1
01

    
  

5,7
74

    
    

32
7

    
    

   
59

2
    

    
  

93
3

    
    

    
    

0.2
1

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
  

21
3

    
    

    
  

75
4

    
    

    
 

88
    

    
    

    
  

0.2
5

    
    

20
16

7,0
31

    
  

6,7
87

    
    

24
4

    
    

   
53

0
    

    
  

51
5

    
    

    
    

0.2
3

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
  

96
4

    
    

    
  

86
7

    
    

    
 

62
    

    
    

    
  

1.0
4

    
    

20
17

7,4
59

    
  

7,0
87

    
    

37
2

    
    

   
67

8
    

    
  

68
8

    
    

    
    

0.2
7

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
  

57
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

  

So
urc

e: 
Th

e C
ity

 of
 E

ag
le 

M
ou

nta
in

CI
TY

 O
F 

EA
GL

E 
M

OU
NT

AI
N

Ple
dg

ed
-R

ev
en

ue
 C

ov
era

ge
La

st 
Te

n F
isc

al 
Ye

ars
(do

lla
rs 

in 
tho

us
an

ds
)

W
ate

r a
nd

 Se
we

r R
ev

en
ue

 B
on

ds
El

ec
tri

c a
nd

 G
as 

Re
ve

nu
e B

on
ds

SI
D 

20
00

-1 
(S

ale
s T

ax
 20

13
)



112

E
A

G
L

E
 M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 C

IT
Y

Pl
ed
ge
d-
R
ev
en
ue
 C
ov
er
ag
e 
(c
on
t.)

La
st
 T
en
 F
is
ca
l Y
ea
rs

(d
ol

la
rs

 in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

De
bt 

Se
rvi

ce
De

bt 
Se

rvi
ce

De
bt 

Se
rvi

ce

Fis
ca

l 
Ye

ar
Sp

ec
ial

 
As

ses
sm

en
ts

Pr
inc

ipa
l

Int
ere

st
Co

ve
rag

e
Sp

ec
ial

 
As

ses
sm

en
ts

Pr
inc

ipa
l

Int
ere

st
Co

ve
rag

e
Cl

ass
 B

 &
 C

 
Ro

ad
 Fu

nd
s

Pr
inc

ipa
l

Int
ere

st
Co

ve
rag

e

20
08

23
0

$  
    

    
   

34
5

$  
    

  
70

3
$  

    
    

   
0.2

2
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

 
56

3
$  

    
    

   
11

1
$  

   
39

$  
    

  
3.7

5
    

    
 

20
09

16
6

    
    

    
   

10
8

    
    

  
10

1
    

    
    

   
0.7

9
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

 
61

8
    

    
    

   
11

5
    

   
36

    
    

  
4.0

9
    

    
 

20
10

13
2

    
    

    
   

11
2

    
    

  
11

0
    

    
    

   
0.5

9
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

 
70

4
    

    
    

   
11

9
    

   
31

    
    

  
4.6

9
    

    
 

20
11

18
2

    
    

    
   

31
5

    
    

  
97

    
    

    
    

 
0.4

4
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

 
74

5
    

    
    

   
12

3
    

   
28

    
    

  
4.9

3
    

    
 

20
12

30
5

    
    

    
   

52
3

    
    

  
66

    
    

    
    

 
0.5

2
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

 
72

9
    

    
    

   
12

8
    

   
21

    
    

  
4.8

9
    

    
 

20
13

5
    

    
    

    
   

55
8

    
    

  
41

    
    

    
    

 
0.0

1
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

 
77

2
    

    
    

   
13

4
    

   
16

    
    

  
5.1

5
    

    
 

20
14

-
    

    
    

    
   

 
-

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
   

 
-

    
    

  
21

1
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
 

73
8

    
    

    
   

14
6

    
   

10
    

    
  

5
    

    
    

 
20

15
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
  

20
9

    
    

    
  

22
4

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
 

0.9
3

-
    

    
    

    
   

 
-

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
-

    
    

  
20

16
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
  

95
9

    
    

    
  

95
0

    
    

   
11

8
    

    
 

0.9
0

-
    

    
    

    
   

 
-

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
-

    
    

  
20

17
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
  

25
1

    
    

    
  

18
0

    
    

   
71

    
    

   
1.0

0
-

    
    

    
    

   
 

-
    

    
    

-
    

    
    

-
    

    
  

So
urc

e: 
Th

e C
ity

 of
 Ea

gle
 M

ou
nta

in

CI
TY

 O
F E

AG
LE

 M
OU

NT
AI

N
Ple

dg
ed

-R
ev

en
ue

 C
ov

era
ge

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
La

st 
Te

n F
isc

al 
Ye

ars
(do

lla
rs 

in 
tho

us
an

ds
)

SI
D 

98
-1 

(20
05

A)
Ex

cis
e T

ax
 R

oa
d B

on
d

SA
A 

20
14

-1



113

DEMOGRAPHICS AND ECONOMICS
Pages 113-114 of the Statistical Section of this report show demographic and economic statistics for the City 
over the last 10 years of the City’s history.

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Calendar Population  Personal Income 

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income

Unemployment	
Rate*

2008 22,309 271,043,036$ 	$								12,149	 3.2
2009 23,000 292,965,933 											12,738	 5.2
2010 21,415 299,270,206 											13,975	 7.1
2011 22,008 297,656,898 											13,525	 7.5
2012 23,531 395,326,200 											16,800	 6.1
2013 24,097 355,865,378 											14,768	 4.6
2014 25,760 386,553,677 											15,006	 3.7
2015 27,027 440,705,329 16,306 3.2
2016 31,165 512,700,028 16,451 2.9
2017 32,980 570,420,663 17,296 2.9

Source: The City of Eagle Mountain
													Utah	State	Tax	Commission	

CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last	Ten	Calendar	Years
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008(2)

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total City 

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total City 

Employment
Alpine School District 482 1 41.80% N/A N/A
Eagle Mountain City 128 2 11.10% N/A N/A
Ridley's	Family	Market 114 3 9.89% N/A N/A
Job Match LLC 60 4 5.20% N/A N/A
Rockwell	High	School 50 5 4.34% N/A N/A
Ranches	Academy 48 6 4.16% N/A N/A
Questar	Gas 37 7 3.21% N/A N/A
The	Ranches	Golf	Club 30 8 2.60% N/A N/A
TM Crushing LLC 27 9 2.34% N/A N/A
Maverik 23 10 1.99% N/A N/A
Revere	Health 20 11 1.73% N/A N/A
Direct Communications 19 12 1.65% N/A N/A
Village Pizza 18 13 1.56% N/A N/A
Six Sisters Deli & Grille 18 13 1.56% N/A N/A
Subway 15 15 1.30% N/A N/A
Domino's	Pizza 15 15 1.30% N/A N/A
Utah	Addiction	Centers,	LLC 13 17 1.13% N/A N/A
Jiffy Lube 13 17 1.13% N/A N/A
Gotta Dance 12 19 1.04% N/A N/A
Holiday Oil 11 20 0.95% N/A N/A
Total City Employment 1,153 88.38% N/A N/A

Source: The City of Eagle Mountain

(1)  Includes the top twenty employers according to total number of employees.

(2)		The	City	did	not	collect	employee	information	as	part	of	business	license	or	any	other
process	until	2009.

N/A = Not Available

CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN
Principal Employers(1)

Current	Year	and	Nine	Years	Ago
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OPERATING INFORMATION
Pages 115-117 of the Statistical Section show operating statistics and performance measurement data for the 
City’s overall performance over the last 10 years.

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Function/Program

General government
Administration 8.6 6.6 8.6 11 8 7 5 5.5 4 5.41
Finance 4 4 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 3.6
Planning 5 4 3.5 2.5 3.5 2.83 4 4 4 4
Building 7 6 5.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 5.5 5.75 5 5.25
Recorder 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Facilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1.5 3 2.1
Public Information 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1.25 2 2.4
Human	Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1
Other 0 0 0 0 3.38 3 1.5 2.15 1.5 7.38

Police
Crossing Guards 3.5 3.5 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 4.75 5.25 5 4.52

Fire
Firefighters and offic 16.75 15.8 16.59 16.59 17 17 0 0 0 0

Parks and recreation 5 5 1 4.75 4.5 4.5 7.2 7.2 7.5 9.33
Library 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 4.13 4.13 5.15 5.5 6 6.33
Other public works

Management 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Engineering 2 2 2.3 2.6 2.66 2.66 4.96 5 5 4.33
Streets 4 4 3.5 3.25 3.5 3.5 4.5 4.5 7.5 6.01
Water 4 4 6 5.17 5.17 5.16 5.3 5.5 7 5.93
Wastewater 4 4 5.1 5.17 5.17 5.17 5.31 4 4.5 5.3
Utility	Billing 4 4 4 3.75 4.75 5 5.5 4 3 3.5
Other 0 1 4 2 2 2 2.68 3.38 3 4.63

Energy 18 13 13 12 12 11 13 0 0 0

Total 94.15 86.1 84.59 83.78 88.46 85.65 84.35 72.48 76 84.02

Source: The City of Eagle Mountain

CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN
Full-time-Equivalent	City	Government	Employees	by	Function/Program

Last	Ten	Fiscal	Years

Full-time-Equivalent	Employees	as	of	June	30
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS REPORT

UTAH STATE COMPLIANCE REPORT
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